
MINUTE 
RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

August 6, 2002 

The Randolph County Planning Board met at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, August 6, 2002, in the 
Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, 
Asheboro, North Carolina. 

1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called to order the Randolph County Planning Board 
meeting at 6:30 p.m.  

2. Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the members: Maxton McDowell, 
Chairman, present; Bill Dorsett, Vice Chairman, present; Lynden Craven, present; Al 
Morton, absent; Phil Ridge, present; Larry Brown, absent; and Chris McLeod, present.  

3. Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to approve the minutes of the July 9, 
2002, Randolph County Planning Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously.  

4. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING:  
A. ROBERT BALDWIN, Ramseur, North Carolina, is requesting that 3.00 acres (out 

of 54.73 acres) located at 2454 NC Hwy 49, Columbia Township, be rezoned 
from RA to LI/CU.  Parcel ID # 8713889208.  The proposed Conditional Use 
Zoning District would specifically allow the operation of a trucking/hauling 
business in existing 40' x 60' building, a 10,000-gallon aboveground fuel tank and 
a parking area of approximately 2 acres for 10 trucks and employees.  

Johnson said that the Technical Review Committee had met to discuss this case and 
found that Baldwin is in violation of the North Carolina Sedimentation Act, along 
with possible numerous North Carolina Water Quality regulations.  Baldwin is also 
in violation of his Special Use Permit, which was for 3 dump trucks (he currently 
has 7 trucks).  The Technical Review Committee recommended APPROVAL of 
this request with the condition that his violations with the State be resolved prior to 
issuance of any permits. 

Johnson explained that Baldwin had a Special Use Permit for a small business.  The 
business has grown and he now requests the rezoning to be able to expand.   

Baldwin said that he has 8 employees and the business has grown larger than he had 
expected.  Baldwin said that he would like to install an above ground tank to help 
with fuel expenses.  Baldwin said that he has received a letter from the State 
concerning the erosion control that needs to be installed.  Baldwin said that he plans 
to pasture the largest portion of the property.  Baldwin said that a small section of 
the cleared property would be for the tanks and more parking for his 
trucks.  Baldwin said that most of the cleared area is for pasture and would not be 
part of the business. 

Johnson said the that the two separate uses (industrial and agricultural) will have 
different soil erosion laws to follow. 



Dorsett asked about spill containment plans.  Baldwin said that he was told he has 
to be 50 feet off the property lines.  Baldwin said he would do what is required of 
him to install the tank.  Johnson explained that these problems are controlled by 
above-ground tanks and special concreting requirements.  Baldwin said he plans to 
set the tanks on concrete and build a wall for containment. 

Kathleen Fogleman, 2252 Hwy 49 N, expressed concern for possible contamination 
of the stream if the tank leaked. 

Johnson explained that the State would regulate this installation and Baldwin would 
be required to meet all guidelines. 

Ridge made the motion to recommend to the Commissioners that this request be 
approved with the condition that all State sedimentation laws be met prior to any 
building permits.  Craven seconded this request and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

B. HARVEY & JOAN HAMMOND, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting that 1.00 
acre (out of 4.67 acres), located on the corner of Union Church Road and Old Hwy 49 South, 
Cedar Grove Township, be rezoned from RR to RBO-CU.  Parcel ID # 7730518447.  The 
proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a convenience store to be 
located on site.   

The Technical Review Committee reviewed this request and recommended to the 
Planning Board that this request be approved to provide a need in this rural area 
consistent with the Growth Management Plan. 

Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review 
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

Policy 4.3        Rural area commercial development should be limited to 
neighborhood business uses, farm supply stores, and generally accepted rural 
business establishments. 

Policy 4.6        Compatible land uses such as rural neighborhood retail and 
service establishments located close to general residential areas should be 
considered during the rezoning process with the general goal of reducing 
automobile travel distances and promoting better livability in the community. 

Policy 4.7        The County should encourage the use of rural business overlay 
districts to provide locations where compatible rural land uses such as 
neighborhood retail and service establishments can be located in general 
proximity to established rural residential areas with the goal of reducing 
automobile travel distances and promoting better livability in the rural 
community. 



Hammond was present and explained he lives next to this site.  Hammond said that 
this would be a typical full-service convenience store with gas pumps.  Hammond 
said that his son would probably manage the business for him. 

Chairman McDowell said that he felt this would be good location for this type of 
business because there aren’t any stores between Farmer and Asheboro.  McDowell 
said he felt this would be a good service to the community. 

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

McLeod made the motion, seconded by Craven, to recommend to the 
Commissioners that this request be approved as consistent with the Growth 
Management Plan.  The motion passed unanimously. 

C. HOYLE & ESTHER SYKES, JR., Archdale, North Carolina, are requesting that 
17.00 acres located on W.O.W. Road (Woods Mobile Home Park), Franklinville 
Township, be rezoned from RM to RM-CU.  Parcel ID # 7763967003.  The 
proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a 9-lot 
expansion of the existing mobile home park for a total of 20 lots.  

The Technical Review Committee met and found that the proposal was in 
compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted 
by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical 
Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this request be 
approved. 

Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review 
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

Policy 6.5        The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be 
encouraged by compatible residential development to insure the continued 
existence as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

Policy 8.8        The County should seek land use decisions that continue to 
provide locations for affordable housing while maintaining a choice in 
compatible housing types in communities within the county. 

Sykes was present and explained his intentions to expand this park.  Sykes talked 
about the plants that he plans along WOW Road and the northern property 
line.  Sykes said he also plans to maintain a 20' natural buffer along the southern 
property line and a 50' natural buffer along the river.  Sykes said that he plans to 
upgrade the road in the existing park to current County standards.  Sykes said that 
when the existing mobile homes are moved out they will be replaced by newer 
model homes.  Sykes provided the Board with a copy of his park rules and 
regulations.  Sykes said that 3 tenants on-site keep him well informed about any 



problems that may arise in the park.  Sykes said that there will be no mobile homes 
over five years old allowed to locate in the park. 

David Ward, 2160 WOW Road, said that he adjoins the property to the north 
behind the chicken houses.  Ward said that he didn’t feel a 10-ft. buffer would be 
enough along their property line.  Ward also discussed problems with land perking 
in the area.  Ward said that there is a creek that flows across this property, and the 
property stands in water some times during the year.  Ward talked about all the 
traffic that is currently on WOW Road. 

Johnson asked Sykes about the buffer along the northern property line.  Sykes said 
that there is a pasture fence along the property line, and he doesn’t plan to take out 
any more trees than necessary.  Johnson said that he felt the same buffer should be 
required on both sides of the property. 

Chairman McDowell asked Sykes if he would consider a 25-ft. buffer along the 
southern and northern property line.  Sykes said he would agree to this condition 
change.   

Craven made the motion to recommend to the Commissioners that this request be 
approved with the condition of a 25-ft. buffer along all sides with plantings being 
required where necessary.  Dorsett seconded this motion and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

D. JESSE AND MARTHA COKE, JR., Lexington, North Carolina, are requesting that 
1.88 acres located at 8358 US Hwy 220 Business North, Level Cross Township, 
Randleman Lake Watershed, be rezoned from RA to HC-CU.  Parcel ID # 
7766357576.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically 
allow an automotive repair and body shop in an existing 60' x 100' building.   

The Technical Review Committee met and found that this proposal was in 
compliance with the standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The 
Technical Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved with the condition that the applicant submit appropriate 
Watershed Site Plans and Spill Containment Plans prior to operating the business. 

Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review 
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

Policy 4.2        Highway-oriented commercial uses should be clustered along 
segments of arterial streets and contain land uses that are mutually compatible 
and reinforcing in use and design.  They should be designed in a way that 
minimizes signage, access points and excessive lengths for commercial strip 
development. 



Policy 7.5        Site plans should be provided that design built-upon areas to 
specifically minimize stormwater runoff impact to streams and other receiving 
waters. 

Coke was present and explained that he purchased the property in 1986.  Coke said 
that he originally constructed the building to build race cars.  Coke said that over 
the years he has rented the building.  Coke said that the people that are currently 
renting the building have cleaned up the place and plan to operate the body shop.    

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

Dorsett said if this is approved he felt there should be restrictions placed to control 
the outside storage, and a spill containment plan should also be filed. 

McLeod made the motion, seconded by Ridge, to recommend to the 
Commissioners that this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

E. SUNIL & WANICE KAPOOR, Liberty, North Carolina, are requesting that 2.54 
acres located on Liberty Grove Road, Liberty Township, be rezoned from RA to 
RM-CU.  Parcel ID # 8737178586.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning District 
would specifically allow a Planned Unit Development for 2 duplex apartments.  

The Technical Review Committee reviewed this request and recommended to the 
Planning Board that this request be DENIED as incompatible with the single family 
housing in the area. 

Growth Management Policy that the Technical Review Committee found 
supporting this recommendation is: 

Policy 6.5        The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be 
encouraged by compatible residential development to insure the continued 
existence as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

Kapoor was present and explained that he has owned the property for 7 
years.  Kapoor said that he is a residence on this property, and it  has been appraised 
for $193,000.  Kapoor said that the back of the lots are wooded and the driveway is 
a private drive.  Kapoor said that he plans to build a concrete drive.  Kapoor said 
that the neighborhood is a mix of development with a trailer park, site-built homes, 
and trailers.  Kapoor said that the duplexes will be stick-built with a minimum of 
1,000 sq. ft.  Kapoor said that all the lots north of him are owner-occupied double-
wide mobile homes.  Kapoor said that the lots have been perked.  Kapoor said that 
he wouldn’t want to do anything that would devalue his property or his neighbor’s 
property.  Kapoor said that on the adjoining two lots he owns, he plans to build 
single-family site-built homes to sell.  Kapoor said that he would use the 60 ft. 
access for each of the lots. 



Bill Clemmons, 7153 Farm House Road, said that he is opposed to this request 
because of the precedent this will set if it is approved.  Clemmons said that their 
development requires 5 acres per residence on a private road.  Clemmons said that 
this would be 4 single-family residences on a private road with lot sizes of less than 
5 acres per residence.  Clemmons expressed concern for permitting rental property 
on this single-lane farm road in a farming community.  Clemmons said that the 
trailer park Kapoor is discussing is 1 mile or more up the road on Richland Church 
Road.  Clemmons said that they purchased their properties for owner-occupied lots 
and not income producing properties. 

Virginia Haithcox, adjoining property owner, said that they own the easement on 
the north side of this property.  Haithcox said that they have lived here for 35+ 
years and experience water problems when it rains.  Haithcox said that they don’t 
want it because this is the country, and these rental properties shouldn’t be 
allowed.  Haithcox said that they moved here on family land so they could be in the 
country.  Haithcox said that they have a lot of wildlife here and they would like to 
protect them.  Haithcox said they live here for peace and serenity.  Haithcox asked 
the Board to protect their way of life. 

Thomas Moore, 5085 Liberty Grove Road, (across the road from this site) said that 
he has lived here for more than 50 years and was born here before then.  Moore said 
that he worries that the population density with so many rental units on 2.5 
acres.  Moore said that this is too many people for such a small area.  Moore asked 
the Board to deny this request. 

Randy McKenzie, 5136 Liberty Grove Road, said that the access road is very 
narrow and long and he feels it would not be good to have this much new 
traffic.  McKenzie said that this would be a lot of traffic coming by his 
house.  McKenzie talked about the run-off problems along this property.  McKenzie 
said that he moved here in 1998 to get away from rental properties, and this is 
something they would like to avoid. 

Christine Loflin, Liberty Grove Road, said that when this subdivision was 
established, it has restrictions that do not allow more than one single-family 
dwelling per lot.  Loflin said this would distroy the area and is just a bad idea. 

Dorsett made the motion to recommend that this be denied because it would change 
the character of the community.  Craven seconded this request and the motion 
passed unanimously. 

F. IVICA & FEDE SAJFAR, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting that 20.04 
acres located on High Pine Church Road, High Pine Acres Subdivision, Lot # 5, 
Union Township, be rezoned from RA to RLOE-CU.  Parcel ID # 7637657027.  The 
proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow the re-division 
of Lot # 5 in High Pine Acres subdivision, for the development of a 3-lot 
subdivision for site-built homes only with a minimum house size of 2,000 sq. ft.  



The Technical Review Committee met following the Neighborhood Information 
Meeting and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards outlined in 
the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of County Commissioners 
on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review Committee recommended to the 
County Planning Board that this request be approved. 

Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review 
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 

Policy 6.5        The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be 
encouraged by compatible residential development to insure the continued 
existence as a major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality 
of life in Randolph County. 

Policy 6. 13     Conventional Residential subdivisions are anticipated of similar 
housing characteristics to the community. 

Sajfar said that he placed an easement in the center of the property so that each lot 
could access a private drive instead of High Pine Church Road. 

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

McLeod asked if the Board approved another division like this a couple of months 
ago, and Johnson answered yes. 

Ridge made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to recommend to the 
Commissioners that this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

G. THOMAS & PEGGY BRITT, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting that 2.93 
acres located on Highway 64 East (on right past Meadow Road), Franklinville 
Township, be rezoned from RA to LI-CU.  Parcel ID # 7781685916.  The proposed 
Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a 60' x 100' building for 
warehouse storage.  

The Technical Review Committee met and found that this proposal was in 
compliance with the standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The 
Technical Review Committee recommend to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved with the condition of a Level 1 buffer along the eastern, 
western, and southern property lines. 

Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review 
Committee found supporting this recommendation are: 



Policy 3.5        Warehousing, storage, and distribution facilities should have 
direct access to appropriate thoroughfares and should be visually buffered 
according to their location. 

Policy 4.2        Highway-oriented commercial uses should be clustered along 
segments of arterial streets and contain land uses that are mutually compatible 
and reinforcing in use and design.  They should be designed in a way that 
minimizes signage, access points and excessive lengths for commercial strip 
development. 

Britt was present and explained his intentions to construct the building for rental 
storage building.   Britt said that he plans to leave a buffer along the property lines. 

There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

Craven made the motion, seconded by Ridge, to recommend to the Commissioners 
that this request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

5. The meeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m.  There were 28 citizens present for this meeting.  

 

NORTH CAROLINA 
RANDOLPH COUNTY 

 


